
������ � � � �� � 	 �
 � � � �� � � � � �� 
 � � �� �� � �	 � �� � � � � � �� � � � ������� � � � �� � 	 �
 � � � �� � � � � �� 
 � � �� �� � �	 � �� � � � � � �� � � � ������� � � � �� � 	 �
 � � � �� � � � � �� 
 � � �� �� � �	 � �� � � � � � �� � � � ������� � � � �� � 	 �
 � � � �� � � � � �� 
 � � �� �� � �	 � �� � � � � � �� � � � � ����
 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

September 13, 2006 
 
 

A meeting of the Sheridan Area Water Supply-Joint Powers Board (SAWS-JPB) was 
called to order at the County Commissioner’s Board Room at 5:09 pm.  Chairman Ky 
Dixon presided. A quorum of Board Members was present including: Chairman Ky 
Dixon, Marc Ketcham, Dave Kinskey and Terry Cram. Others present included:  
Administrator Jay Stender, members of the public, and the media.   
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Chairman Ky Dixon called the meeting to order at 5:09 pm.   
B. The meeting was recorded for transcription purposes.   

 
 
II. REVIEW AND APPROVE MEETING MINUTES  
 
Motion made to approve the August 9, 2006 meeting minutes as wr itten. 
Motion made by: Dave Kinskey 
Motion seconded by: Terry Cram 
Vote 4-0 for  approval 
 
 Discussion:  N/A 
 
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion made to approve the agenda as amended w/out executive session 
Motion made by: T. Cram 
Motion seconded by: M. Ketcham 
Vote 4-0 for  approval 
 
 Discussion: Ketcham requested that the executive session be removed from the 
agenda.  
 
IV. TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
Motion made to accept the Treasurer ’s Repor t.  
Motion made by: Terry Cram 
Motion seconded by: Dave Kinskey 
Vote 4-0 for  approval 
 
 Discussion: K. Dixon asked J. Stender to highlight the Treasurer’s Report.   The 
investments are accurate as of 8/31, and, also, note that there are two payments for the 

 



 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

2 

Twin Lakes monitoring.  One payment is for hydrologic monitoring for 30 days, and the 
other is for soil and vegetation monitoring by Limbus Consulting.  K. Dixon asked if 
there were any questions about the Treasurer’s Report.  Ron Litton, from the public, 
asked how much debt SAWS currently has.  K. Dixon told him that she would have to get 
the exact number for him at a later time.  K. Dixon mentioned that this forum is being 
recorded, so any person wishing to comment would have to be called on.  
 
Audit Schedule 
 K. Dixon asked about the audit schedule.  J. Stender replied that Dooley & Jelly 
are currently finishing up the audit, and will tentatively be ready to report at the October 
meeting. J. Stender said that Rucki & Marshall will have the balance sheet ready for the 
first quarter of the fiscal year and the audit will potentially be reported at the October 
meeting.  K. Dixon asked if there were any further questions about the audit from the 
board.  There were no comments. 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Chairman Ky Dixon opened the floor to public comments. 
 
 Ken Oliver approached the microphone.  He stated that his wife owns property at 
2841 Dry Ranch Road.  He wants a water tap at that property and stated that he has been 
trying for 10 years.  He mentioned to the board that his presentation was long and offered 
to wait until New Business.  K. Dixon replied that acquiring a water tap is an 
administrative procedure, not a board issue.  K. Oliver said that there was more to the 
issue than that.  K. Dixon said that she would like to schedule him for a regular spot on 
the Agenda for the next meeting in October so any documentation he might have can be 
presented.  K. Oliver gave the board his contact info, (telephone 672-2307) so he will be 
notified of the next meeting.  Mayor Kinskey added that he has spoken with Mr. Oliver at 
length and told him to come to this meeting, and did not think to put him on the agenda.  
He is currently speaking to the director of public works and the water director to get him 
a city tap.  Mr. Oliver stated that he knows he can get a tap now, and it is the price of a 
tap that he has a problem with.  K. Dixon said that he is now on the October Meeting 
Agenda.  
 
 Doug Harbel, on 117 Metz Road, said that on May 10, 2006 he requested an 
administrative hearing and K. Dixon and K. Kennedy had accepted his letter.  He 
received a letter from K. Dixon - Chairman denying the request for a hearing and citing a 
Wyoming statute that he claims does not apply to him.  K. Dixon interrupted him; she 
(Dixon)  said that his claim has been a topic at many successive meetings.  She stated that 
in order for SAWS to grant an administrative hearing on a contested case SAWS must 
have documentation, in writing, about what action he (Harbel) would like the board to 
take and what kind of violation he thinks has been done to him.  Dixon said that his note 
did not suffice for evidence for an administrative hearing.  Dixon read the note, verbatim: 
the SAWS board motion made regarding his tap and payment issue at an earlier meeting.  
The motion will stand unless the board chooses to take any further action.  The motion 
was made to remove the tap, deny water service until payments of debt, and require plant 
investment fee for future service. She said that to her understanding Mr. Harbel has not 
been further billed for any subsequent water use since May. The debt that he had incurred 
before May was not exempted by the motion of the board.  The staff has no authority to 



 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

3 

do anything that the board has not already done.  Mr. Harbel said that the debt in question 
is a debt that the board has created.  K. Dixon told him that he will have to take this issue 
to another forum.  D. Harbel said that he tried and it was denied even though the board 
accepted his letter on May 10th.  K. Dixon asked Mr. Harbel to either put his concerns in 
writing in the form she specified in her letter or please sit down.  Due to Mr. Harbel’s 
behavior K. Dixon called for a meeting recess.  Recess was in place from 5:24 to 5:28 
pm. Chairman Dixon reconvened the meeting. 
 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 
 
  Administrator’s Report 
 
The board was informed of: 
 
#1 The 20”  monitoring costs.  
 
#2 There is a change of operation from TSP. They were the contractor for the airport and 
they have made a change in their business.  They have completed their job in terms of 
design and specs, and just want the board to be notified of the change.  Vista West 
Engineering is now the operating engineer related to the airport water line extension. 
 
#3 As per a request from Kathy Kennedy at the last board meeting related to the county 
water line use.  There is a copy of what J. Stender provided to the media about this issue 
and the answer to her question in the board packet.   
 
#4 D. Engels from En Tech has completed his report. The primary question brought forth 
was the number of taps available.  There are a couple of issues J. Stender highlighted.  
The report does recognize the direct flow rights and conveyance loss.  
 1) There are 549 acre feet of water available to the City of Sheridan from Twin 
Lakes.  Mr. Engels did note in his report that 2006 is an adverse year related to water 
resources.  
  2) SAWS has 331 taps that they are contractually committed to provide service, 
and SAWS does not have the system in place to provide that water.  Those are areas 
where the developer has contractually committed to provide separate irrigation systems.  
  3)  Item 7 is based on existing accounts and existing accounts that do not use 
water.  It was estimated that there are 1,896 taps in use and right now the tally is 1,540.  
 4) The report makes the comment about uncommitted water.  There is 183 acre 
feet available for future use.  Depending on the rate of growth and future connections to 
the system this should provide adequate water for SAWS for a period anywhere from 
2014 – 2036.   
 5)  J. Stender would also like to point out in the Entech executive summary the 
following. 

·  In the introduction, as of 8/31/06 the airport has only received 4.56 inches 
of precipitation, whereas last year they received 10.45 inches.  It is 
important to note that this is a very dry year.  



 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

4 

·   A benefit of SAWS is the reducing demand for irrigation.  The billing 
period revealed that only 37% of the average usage was consumed.  This 
will extend the life of our available water.   

 
Discussion: 
D. Kinskey asked J. Stender if he can figure out some scenarios using present historical 
use as an average and extend it out on a 3% increase per year, and maybe figure out 
another scenario where we allow irrigation with SAWS water in subdivisions and extend 
that out for as many years as possible. In addition, if J. Stender can create another 
scenario where there is no irrigation. D. Kinskey also asked if all water use agreements 
state that irrigation is not allowed. J. Stender responded that, to his knowledge, water 
service agreements since about 1997 or 98 has the irrigation stipulation.  J. Stender 
replied that with a 3% increase in taps each year there should be enough water for the 
next 30 years.  The Entech graphic (figure 2) shows the impact that the irrigation has on 
preserving available treated water.  J. Stender stated, if anyone comes in for a main line 
extension an alternate irrigation system is required and SAWS water cannot be used for 
irrigation. This policy has been in place since at least 1998.  K. Dixon asked if there are 
any further questions on the report.  She wanted to know how SAWS makes this 
information available.  J. Stender said that we can either make a physical copy or send an 
electronic PDF file. Board members were provided with their copies.  
 
D. Kinskey asked J. Stender about the 115 existing accounts which have guaranteed 
service and the 331 taps that have contractually committed service, such as the Powder 
Horn, which don’ t pay the $29.00 fee, but will receive a tap if they show up.  He 
(Kinskey) wanted to clarify that the 115 taps are not a part of the 331 taps.  J. Stender 
said they were not.  Mayor Kinskey continued with K. Kennedy’s question from the 
previous board meeting about guaranteed taps.  The person must either pay the fee or be a 
contractor/developer that had an early contract to guarantee a tap.  K. Dixon said that her 
understanding is that most of the subdivisions approved for guaranteed taps have not 
been built out yet, but the guaranteed taps are a part of the 331. 
 
K. Dixon asked J. Stender to ask D. Engels to come to the next meeting. 
 
J. Stender continued with a proposal that they move forward with a general outreach 
meeting with the public on October 4, 2006 to address the public’s questions.  Questions 
such as what is a SAWS permit, what is a water use agreement, and how do they affect 
the SAWS system will be addressed.  He would also like to address sewage systems at 
that time in the Little Goose Valley, in addition to addressing the 1 mile zone if that info 
is prepared. J. Stender said that there is much interest for this meeting, and he thinks it 
would be a great way to answer the community’s questions.  Both D. Kinskey and K. 
Dixon said that they have also had requests for this type of meeting.  J. Stender said that 
the city is behind it and Mr. Yates (County Public Utilities Director) has agreed to help.  
K. Dixon asked if this meeting has been tentatively scheduled.  Jenny Craft said that the 
Center for Vital Community at Sheridan College has been reserved for Wednesday, 
October 4th from 4:30 – 6:30 pm.   
 
 Indian Paint Brush Reconsideration 
 



 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

5 

K. Dixon moved on with Old Business.  She said that IPB has requested reconsideration 
of the decision for the water service agreement.  In order to reconsider a motion must be 
made by the board.  A motion was offered by D Kinskey. 
 
Motion made to reconsider  Indian Paint Brush.  
Motion made by: D. Kinskey 
Motion seconded by: M. Ketcham 
 
 Discussion: K. Dixon asked the Indian Paint Brush people to further explain what 
is different from the initial proposal.  Dan Riggs stepped up to the microphone.  He is the 
attorney representing the Indian Paint Brush subdivision.  The differences are 1) the 
developer has offered a pre-annexation agreement to the city for use if the city so desires. 
2) The developer has offered and proposed a staggered number of service taps over a 3-
year period to reduce immediate demand on the system. 3) The developer has offered 
some shares of Big Horn Reservoir stock to be used at SAWS desire at any time in the 
future for SAWS to negotiate or purchase or other water rights from a third party.  These 
water rights are specific for the Indian Paintbrush Area.  In the meantime the developer 
will continue to pay for the stock in the reservoir unless SAWS decides to use them.   
 
K. Dixon decided to limit the comments to 2 minutes apiece for time, and opened the 
floor to more IPB comments. 
 
Ron Litton, the agent for Big Horn Reservoir, spoke first.  He commented that the stock 
in the Big Horn Reservoir shall not be transferred to any person or entity, as noted on the 
back of the stock certificate, until it has been first offered to the Big Horn Reservoir 
Company or an existing share holder in writing at the value of shares for agricultural use.  
D. Riggs was asked to comment on what exactly is being offered in terms of the stock.  
He (Riggs) told the board that they are offering the shares as available to SAWS for their 
use in the future if they meet the various requirements.  He conceded that restrictions on 
the transfer of stock do exist but they may not exist in the future.  The shares will be 
available if SAWS is able to and wants to use them.  Mr. Riggs said that no transfer of 
stock will be made now, but they would be held in escrow for SAWS use in the future.  
R. Litton replied that the shares cannot be held in escrow and may only be used by the 
owner.  He (Litton) continued citing state statutes and said that the IPB subdivision did 
not meet those state statues. K. Dixon interrupted and said that comments will be limited 
to the water use agreement and the memorandum of understanding only.  The subdivision 
requirements are not something that SAWS deals with or has any authority over.  
 
Irene Hause at 74 Swaim Road approached the microphone. Her property is next to IPB. 
She was upset that she was accused in the paper of not having any proof that the land is 
unsuitable for a subdivision. She cited letters to the editor which include her sources; she 
has a document from the Sheridan County Conservation District with the soil types of the 
property. She said IPB is a marginal subdivision at best, and it does not deserve water 
rights from SAWS.  She (Hause) said that with the drought, diminishing water supply, 
and the water restrictions within the city that IPB should not be getting water. I. Hause 
asked if the developer has a warranty on the water pipes he has already installed, and, if 
so, what is that warranty?  J. Stender replied that typically the warranty period is 1 year, 
but the developer has not offered one in this case.   



 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

6 

 
George Fletcher with Fletcher Construction Company also made comments.  He 
reiterated that city of Sheridan construction specifications include a 1 year warranty.  He 
(Fletcher) also said that this meeting was about a DEQ permit which is based on a letter 
from SAWS stating that there is adequate water.  He (Fletcher) asked if they were going 
to live up their obligations or shut down each 2 acre development in the county.  J. 
Stender commented that all the requirements for construction from pipe inspection to 
performance testing were met and complied with the SAWS rules.   
 
R. Litton approached the microphone again. He stated that all IPB had to offer was 21.47 
acre feet of water from Class “A”  Big Horn Reservoir stock.      
 
K. Dixon closed the floor to public comments and opened board discussion.  
 
T. Cram asked how you translate 21 shares of stock into acre feet.  R. Litton replied that 
1 share of stock is equal to 1 acre foot of water.   
 
Motion to amend the or iginal motion related to the Water  Service Agreement and 
adopt, simultaneously, the Memorandum of Understanding and all attachments by 
the Board. 
Motion made by: D. Kinskey 
Motion Seconded by: T. Cram 
 
 Discussion:  D. Kinskey asked Mr. Riggs about the escrow agreement.  He 
(Kinskey) asked if essentially the water was being held in trust for the benefit of the 
SAWS board.  Mr. Riggs said that yes that is an appropriate characterization.  R. Litton 
interjected and re-stated that the restrictions on the stock hold and the Big Horn Reservoir 
board will not approve SAWS to use this stock.  D. Kinskey asked Mr. Riggs for 
clarification.  D. Kinskey said that it is his understanding that if the certificate is held in 
trust that it is not necessary to seek the Big Horn Reservoir Company’s approval.  Mr. 
Riggs concurred. T. Cram asked what happens if SAWS is unable to use the stock?  Mr. 
Riggs said that if they cannot use it then they cannot use it.  It will be held in trust until 
SAWS decides what to do with it.  D. Kinskey then asked about stored water.  He said 
that another subdivision had stored water on the mountain and they went to the state 
board and the water had been severed from the land and they could let that water flow 
anywhere.  R. Litton, interjected from the public, said that it does not apply to Big Horn 
Reservoir.  J. Stender said that in some cases stored water is available and in others it is 
tied specifically to the land serviced.  Each reservoir company has its own rules for 
petitioning. The State Engineer has some impact.  D. Riggs added that this is another 
option for the board if they choose to sever the water from the land.  M. Cole said that 
there are reservoirs which have specific shares of water attached to specific land and 
there are reservoirs that have detached those lands. He said that these shares are attached 
to this land for agriculture use.  In order to use the shares SAWS would have to petition 
to the State Engineers Office requesting detachment, change of use, and possibly change 
of conveyance.  The State Engineers Office additionally requires consent from the ditch 
company or the reservoir company acknowledging that the shares or rights are being 
transferred to SAWS.  D. Kinskey then asked if that is something the share holder does 
and then asked how many shareholders there are in the Big Horn Reservoir Company. 



 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

7 

Kinskey directed his questions to Mr. Litton.   R. Litton said that there are 1,200 to 1,500 
shareholders including many subdivisions.  Litton stated they would have to vote at the 
annual meeting if this was brought to them. D. Kinskey asked what R. Litton’s role was.  
R. Litton said that he is the authorized agent of Big Horn Reservoir and bookkeeper and 
takes care of all the stocks and deals with the Secretary of State.  D. Kinskey asked more 
about the shareholders. Are there other subdivisions that make up the Big Horn Reservoir 
system?  R. Litton listed several subdivisions and outlined the area which ranged from 
Big Horn, to the college, airport and other areas. Litton stressed that the water has to be 
tied to the land.  D. Kinskey asked how this subdivision is different. R. Litton said that 
the shares attached to the land that the Indian Paint Brush subdivision is to be built on is 
only for agricultural use. It is to go down the ditch and not piped into the SAWS system.  
The water could be used for watering lawns and crops.  K. Dixon said that this is what the 
water will be used for to reduce treated water demand. T. Cram asked what the difference 
is between “A”  and “B”  stock.  R. Litton said that “B”  stock is the enlargement on Big 
Horn Reservoir and it can be moved and sold.  “A”  stock cannot be moved, it is attached 
to the land. “A”  stock is first offered to the Big Horn Reservoir Company.   D. Kinskey 
clarified to the board that it would not be Mr. Litton’s decision but the decision of the 
shareholders.  R. Litton said that it would be the decision of the shareholders and then 
taken to the board meeting. M. Ketcham commented that it is his hope that in the future 
other subdivisions will bring them water as well.   
 
K. Dixon asked if there were any more questions or comments from the board.  D. 
Kinskey asked if it was possible for people to trade water across water.  J. Stender said it 
does happen, but it is not too common.  D. Kinskey said then that it might be possible to 
trade this agricultural stock for water for unrestricted water.  R. Litton said that SAWS 
does not have the water right to run the water from Big Horn to another reservoir.  T. 
Cram said that he voted for this water service agreement last time.  He said that it is even 
better this time.  K. Dixon asked for any further comments. None were made.   
 
K. Dixon called for a motion to approve the water service agreement and asked for any 
further discussion or comments.  D. Kinskey offered his observations.  He said he has 
heard both sides of the issue and listened to the concerned residents.  He said that this is a 
community issue, and it is his feeling on this agreement that it is a historic precedent. He 
said that this community needs to look to the future and solve problems now, and the 
SAWS board needs to acquire as much water as they can.  Mayor Kinskey said that he 
shares reservations about this subdivision.  He said that he thinks it is within their rights 
to question the city and county planning process which will help get the right standards 
set for future subdivisions.  He finished by saying that because the developer has offered 
water to SAWS for the same amount his subdivision needs he will reverse his stance and 
vote for Indian Paint Brush – the historic precedence is important to SAWS and the 
community. M. Ketcham offered comment that he was not overall for the subdivision but 
SAWS is not a land use planning board, with no legal right. Ketcham added that it 
appeared that IPE has provided all the information and the offer of water which enable 
his vote in favor. Cram asked J. Stender if the 10 domestic water taps a year is in the 
water use agreement.  J. Stender said that it is in the agreement for a staggered build out.  
K. Dixon asked for further discussion.  Having heard none she called for a vote.   
 
Motion to approve the amended water  service agreement for  IPB. 



 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

8 

Vote 4-0 for  approval 
 
 Arab Acres Reconsideration 
 
K. Dixon said that there is a request to reconsider a water use agreement for Arab Acres.  
She called for a motion to reconsider.  Hearing none the reconsideration is denied and the 
previous board action stands.  
 
 Recommendation from TSP 
 
J. Stender states that this is old business.  The bids went out for the 12”  waterline 
extension at the airport.  Upon reviewing the bids TSP recommends that SAWS award 
the contract the Western Municipal Construction of Wyoming.  The total contract is 
worth $ 269,360.10. This is under the engineering estimate $ 286,905.00. J. Stender said 
that typically the board makes a recommendation to proceed.   
 
Motion to award the bid, at the value of $269.360.10 to Western Municipal 
Construction of Wyoming for  the airpor t water  line extension. 
Motion made by: D. Kinskey 
Motion Seconded by: T Cram 
Vote 4-0 for  approval 
 
 Discussion: K. Dixon said that the SAWS contract with TSP did not include 
construction management. She suggested that the board for a motion to ask Jay to do a 
RFP for a construction manager. J. Stender estimated that it might cost about 5% of the 
construction costs.   
 
Motion to author ize the administrator  to send out a request for  a construction 
manager for  the 12”  extension project. 
Motion made by: D. Kinskey 
Motion seconded by: T. Cram 
Vote 4-0 for  approval 
 
 Discussion:  None. 
 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 
  
 Creek Side Estates Water Service Agreement 
 
K. Dixon said that this is the first water service agreement request to come to the board.    
It has not been through City or County Planning and it does not have a DEQ permit or 
notice to proceed.  J. Stender asked the board to look at the water service agreement.  
There are several processes that still must be completed before construction can start.  D. 
Kinskey asked if this water service agreement was the same as others presented to the 
board.  J. Stender replied that it does not have a memorandum of understanding or a build 
out schedule.   
 



 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

9 

Myrl Williamson is the developer for Creek Side Estates. He acknowledged that other 
subdivisions have gone ahead with construction before getting permission from SAWS.  
He told the board that he wants to do this the right way and get things started with this 
board first.  The property he is hoping to build on is at 5300 Coffeen Avenue, across 
(west) from some commercial property.  Williamson explained that it is well within 
SAWS boundaries and has done extensive studies on the property to make sure it could 
be a viable subdivision and is there to ask for a water use agreement.  Williamson and his 
consulting engineer, Jeff Rosenlund of HKM, presented a concept drawing.   
 
T. Cram asked M. Williamson about property lines.  M. Williamson said that the 
preliminary property line is between the blue lines.  J. Stender said that this property is 
within the SAWS-JPB Service boundary. It still must meet all the other engineering 
requirements before it can be approved for a water service agreement by the SAWS 
board.  K. Dixon said that she thinks it is important to let the developers know ahead of 
time that they can receive water and with how many taps, though, she is uncertain what 
kind of confirmation the board would like to give developers at such an early stage in the 
building process and without all the necessary requirements met.  J. Stender said that a 
letter of intent or a conditional water use agreement may be the tool.   M. Williamson 
said that he is trying to do it right, and he felt that if he did a lot of research on irrigation, 
availability, etc. before he sought the board’s approval that it would be easier for him to 
get a water service agreement.  D. Kinskey asked Mryl if he had already begun to move 
on this and had spoken with the City of Sheridan design review board.  M. Williamson 
said that he went to the design and review board on July 18th. He said that board thought 
it was a good idea.  D. Kinskey said that this subdivision is in a part of town that is 
experiencing a lot of new development and one day he might be annexed into the city and 
no longer be on SAWS water system.  He said that he appreciates Mr. Williamson 
coming in early and giving the SAWS board a heads up.  Mayor Kinskey said that he 
does not think that the board is in a position to grant a water service agreement at this 
time.  K. Dixon commented that she thinks that the SAWS board intention is two-fold.  1) 
do not overlook a time when there is not water available or a system to move the water 2) 
if they want developers to keep stepping up there needs to be an indication that they will 
not get help up at the last minute. She stated he (Williamson) has done everything right, 
but she isn’ t sure that she would entertain a motion or indication from the board that 
would tell Mr. Williamson what the board would like to see him do to move forward.  
She asked M. Williamson if there was anyone from the county there.  M. Williamson said 
that Gary Meyer was present. Williamson would like to get some infrastructure in the 
ground before the frost.  D. Kinskey asked M. Williamson if he was in the position to 
start putting in an infrastructure.  M. Williamson said that he would like to get on with 
the process, get approval and start the infrastructure as soon a possible.  D. Kinskey said 
that in addition to asking the administrator for a preliminary okay on this project he is in 
favor of this project, but as it goes through the process he wants to learn more about this.  
There are some significant flood plain issues, but he is sure that they can be resolved.  K. 
Dixon mentioned that city water happens after annexation. Ketcham asked how far away 
the city limits are from the proposed subdivision.  M. Williamson said that his 
subdivision is about ½ mile from the city limits.  J. Stender asked K. Dixon what the 
pleasure of the board was on this issue.  T. Cram said that he does not feel confident 
approving a water service agreement at this time but he would like to give him some sort 
of an approval now.  K. Dixon said that since this has not been through planning, they do 



 

224 South Main Street ¤ Suite B8 ¤ Sheridan, WY  82801 
Phone:  (307) 672-5280 ¤ sawsjpb@actaccess.net 

10 

not know what the response will be from the neighbors.  She would like to entertain a 
motion to give M. Williamson a preliminary go ahead.  D. Kinskey said that he is not 
hung up on whether it is a letter of intent or a water service agreement with conditions.  
He would like to leave that up to Mr. Stender and bring it forward at the next meeting.  K. 
Dixon reiterated that J. Stender will draft an appropriate document and present it at the 
next meeting.  M. Williamson asked if he was okay to move ahead with the other 
planning processes.  K. Dixon said that he was okay to proceed, and entertained a motion.  
D. Kinskey said that he doesn’ t think one is necessary.  J. Stender confirmed that he is to 
draft a conditional agreement to permit M. Williamson’s subdivision SAWS water and 
have it ready at the next meeting.   
 
 Resolution for Grace Period 
 
 Discussion: K. Dixon brought forth the resolution for the SAWS grace period for 
water payment to match the City of Sheridan’s grace period on late bills.  Cram suggested 
that the policy read 5 business days. Mayor Kinskey said that it is identical to the city’s 
policy.       
 
Motion made to amend the resolution that the late payment penalties be identical to 
the late payment penalties of the City of Sher idan.   
Motion made by: D. Kinskey 
Motion Seconded by: T Cram 
Vote 4-0 
 
  Discussion:  M. Cole suggested that they delay the process so they can get new 
billing forms in. K. Dixon said that she thinks the resolution is okay prior to the 
amendment.  M. Cole clarified that he is asking for an effective date.  T. Cram said that 
they ought to be consistent. 
 
Motion to accept the amended resolution. 
Motion made by: D. Kinskey 
Motion seconded by: T. Cram 
Vote 4-0 
 
VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

A. N/A 
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

A. The meeting was adjourned at 6:54 pm by K. Dixon. 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY:  ________________________ 
 
ATTESTED BY:  ________________________ 


